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1.  SUMMARY






LCpl Litton has been charged with violating UCMJ Article 134 for possessing child pornography. Eight images, videos, were discovered by LCpl Turner on LCpl Litton’s computer. Two of the videos were confirmed child pornography. The others were suspected to be child pornography. Of the suspected six videos 3 were observed by a registered nurse who determined the females in the video to be underage. LCpl Litton was interviewed by NCIS on 20 January 2010. 
2.  CHARGE and SOLE SPECIFICATION:


 

   The charge and specification currently states “In that LCpl Bobby Ray Litton, U.S. Marine Corps, on active duty, did, on divers occasions from on or about 26 January 2009 to on or about 15 January 2010, on board Marine Corps Base Camp Pendleton, California, knowingly posses a computer harddrive that contained images of child pornography, which conduct was to the prejudice of good order and discipline in the armed forces or was of a nature to bring discredit upon the armed forces.”























   The entire specification is noted above because as you can see the government has not charged this offense under a specific federal statute, in particular 18 U.S.C. 2252A. This was done intentionally as to not confuse members and to ensure the terminal element of an Article 134 is presented clearly. At trial the government would need to prove essentially, that LCpl Litton’s computer possessed child pornography and this possession of child pornography is service discrediting.  The government would be able to prove these elements at a General-Court Martial because of the evidence presented below. 
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   EVIDENCE PRESENTED 

a.  Testimony of NCIS Agent Arthur Spafford (Ret)
SA Spafford (Spafford) was the original case agent, conducted interviews of key witnesses, and also interviewed LCpl Litton. SA Spafford has over 30 years experience with NCIS, interviewed countless witnesses and suspects, and participated in several child pornography investigations. 
SA Spafford testified that he seized 2 computers, a thumbdrive, and CD with the informed consent of LCpl Litton (Litton). The computers, a Hewlitt-Packard (HP) and Toshiba were seized from the barracks room of Litton. They were then sent to USACIL for forensic examination. Spafford took sworn statements from LCpl Turner, Sgt Smith, Sgt Riley, and Litton. Spafford testified that in his interview with Litton, which took place in the morning and lasted only an hour, that Litton confessed to downloading the videos, searching for the videos, and using the videos to fulfill his sexual desires. Spaffford further testified to the results of the forensic examination, stating 2 videos were confirmed CP, while 3 of the 6 suspected CP contained females under 18 years of age. 
b.  Testimony of LCpl Turner
LCpl Turner testified that he had permission to use Litton’s computer, had used it on several occasions, and permission to use the computer had never been revoked. In Sept 2009, Turner stated he say videos with disturbing file names in the recycle bin of the computer. Turner was in the recycle bin of Litton’s HP computer to ensure his Leave and Earnings Statement was properly deleted. After discovering these files of possible CP, Turner chose not to report it to higher. He stated him and Litton were roommates and friends and he did not want to get his friend in trouble. Approximately, 3 months later Turner and LCpl McGaulin were overheard talking about how they had found disturbing file names on Litton’s computer. Turner reported this to Sgt Smith, who was in his direct chain of command. Sgt Smith and Turner then both looked in the computer and watched the files. There were several videos they thought contained CP and in order to facilitate efficient access to the evidence Sgt Smith created a folder on the desktop and placed the CP files in there. 
Turner testified he never downloaded CP onto this computer. Turner is a friend of Litton and has not motive to lie. 
c.  Testimony of Sgt Smith 
Sgt Smith testified Turner reported he found something disturbing. Sgt Smith then went directly to LCpl Turner’s barracks room and viewed the files on Litton’s computer. He spent a significant amount of time reviewing the files to ensure they were in fact what they file name said. Sgt Smith had been instructed to gather as much information as possible before going to higher. He moved several of the files from the recycle bin to a folder he created on the desktop. He moved the files only after he had observed them from the recycle bin. 

Sgt Smith has not motive to lie or any reason to believe he manipulated the files when he moved them.  He was acting in good faith when he created the alternate folder.   
d.  Testimony of Erwin Rischer
Mr. Rischer is a digital evidence examiner with USACIL and former member of the U.S. Army. Mr. Rischer testified the HP computer had a registered username of Bobby. None of the other Marines who used the computer were named Bobby, except for the accused. He testified to the process and procedures used to collect the videos and how the videos were identified. 
e.  Interview of Bobby Ray Litton
The government produced a written statement and also DVD of Spafford’s interrogation of Litton. Litton was made aware of his rights and made the informed and voluntary decision to waive them. The DVD shows absolutely no evidence of coercion or intimidation of Litton. In both the statement and video Litton admits to downloading images and videos with girls 13-16 and then masturbating to them. 
4.  CONCLUSION
Based on the facts and evidence described above, the government believes this case should be referred to a General-Court Martial.  Defense has stated Litton attempted to get rid of the CP by placing it in his recycle bin, however Litton in his statement admits he knew the images were wrong and would place them in misnamed files. He never placed them in files named, “young girls”, but instead placed them in folders named, “unknown folder” or “new folder.” This is a consciousness of guilt since he was actively misnaming the folders. The more reasonable explanation is that Litton placed the files in the recycle bin in order to hide them from others using the computer. He was a sophisticated enough computer user to use Limewire but did not know enough to actually empty the recycle bin. The defense also fails to explain why Litton was searching for these types of files to begin with. He conducted searches on Limewire for young girls and freely admits to looking at other websites. 
It is the government’s position that the actual number of images contained on Litton’s computer is significantly higher than has been represented by defense counsel. We believe we should adopt the standard set forth in the United States Sentencing Guidelines. In Section 2g2.2 under the commentary portion #4bii of the Sentencing guidelines, it states 
“Each video, video-clip, movie, or similar visual depiction shall be considered to have 75 images. If the length of the visual depiction is substantially more than 5 minutes, an upward departure may be warranted.”  
The two confirmed videos of CP total more than 5 minutes, as well as the suspected CP. The suspected CP video lengths are 23:57, 10:54, and 11:26. So using this guide we are not talking about 5 videos but well over 600 images. Therefore, this case should be referred to a GCM. 
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